Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Rustomjee Realty Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

=

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Rustomjee Realty Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the vear then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and tair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025,
and total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
“Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that ave relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4.

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Nesco [T Building 111, 8th Figd
Western Express Highway, Goregaon Easl, Mumbai — 400 063
T: +u1 (22) 61197810

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Director’s report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Directors report, if we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate
action as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial

statements

n

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in| India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing anlcl detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating etfectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has na realistic alternative but to do so.

! ; :
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
|
process. |

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statemfents

8.

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether "Fhe financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high lé\fel of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise prﬁfessi{}}la! judgement and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: '
|

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the ﬁnaliLcial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasﬁs for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Mumbai
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by managen

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material unce
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosur
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Ou
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s repon
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a goi

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
the disclasures, and whether the financial statements represe
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

10.We communicate with those charged with governance regarding
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findi1
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the

:

ts LLP

and the reasonableness of

1ent.

the going concern basis of
a material uncertainty exists
on the Company’s ability to

rtainty exists, we are required

es in the financial statements

r conclusions are based on the
t. However, future events or

g Concer.

ancial statements, including
the underlying transactions

¥

r, among other matters, the
igs, including any significant

Drder”), issued by the Central
s Act, we give in the Annexure

B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the O

12. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

&)

rder, to the extent applicable.

ions which to the best of our
dit.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanat
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our au

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept hy the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those baoks, except for the matters stated in
paragraph 12(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including u:ther comprehensive income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of aceount. |

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

atters connected therewith,
on reporting under Section
Rule 11(g) of the Companies

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other m
reference is made to our remarks in paragraph 12(b) above
143(3)(b) and paragraph 12(h)(vi) below on reporting under
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended),

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of trols, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A", =2

“Hariered An,
B4,

ViGras

Yuntanis

§4NN5ODNS
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as

mended), in cur opinion and

to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

ii.

iii.

iv.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 42 to the financial statements.

The Company was not required to recognise a provision as
applicable law or [ndian Accounting Standards, as it ¢
foreseeable losses on long-term contract. The Company
contracts as at March 31, 2025.

There were no amounts which were required to be transfer,
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ende

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of

at March 31, 2025 under the
loes mot have any material
did not have any derivative

red to the Investor Education
d March 31, 2025.

its knowledge and belief, as

disclosed in Note 46(vii) to the financial statements, nofunds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons ar entitiés identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note
46(vii) to the financial statements); |

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of| its knowledge and belief, as

disclosed in the Note 46(vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received
by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or pravide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer N(?te 46(vil) to the financial

statements); and

(¢) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reas
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain an

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the (
software for maintaining its books of account which has a f
(edit log) facility and that has operated throughout the yea
recorded in the software, except that the audit trail is
transactions, for changes made through specific access and
During the course of perfarming our procedures, other thi
audit trail not maintained where the question of our comm
not notice any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retet

onable and appropriate in the
caused us to believe that the
v material misstatement.

r the year.

“ompany has used accounting
pature of recording audit trail
r for all relevant transactions

not maintained for certain
| for direct database changes.
an the aforesaid instances of
enting does not arise, we did
with, or not preserved by the
ntion,

Mumbai
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13. The Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors d
reparting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the C

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

R Cas
v‘v-

Pankaj Khandelia

Partner

Membership Number: 102022
UDIN: 25102022BMOKWH6407

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2025

s LLP

uring the year. Accordingly,
ompany.
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference 1
under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference
Rustomjee Realty Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31,
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended

1.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2,
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
Company considering the essential components of internal control
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal f
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient condu
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the account

s LLP

¢ to the members of Rustomjee
March 31, 2025

o Financial Statements

to financial statements of
»025 in conjunction with our
on that date.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial

criteria established by the
stated in the Guidance Note
‘the Guidance Note”) issued
responsibilities include the
inancial controls that were
ct of its business, including
prevention and detection of
ing recards, and the timely

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the|

Auditor’s Responsibility

Act.

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with

reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with

the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under

ection 143(10) of the Act to

the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, bath applicable to an audit of

internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAL Those Stanq
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and pe

ards and the Guidance Note
rform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in

all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidencs

about the adequacy of the

internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the

design and operating effectiveness of internal contral based on the
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assess

:

sessed risk. The procedures
ent of the risks of material

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or eirror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient q

nd appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference

to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to finangial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial

statements

o

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper man gement override of contrals,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal ﬁnanciai controls with reference to
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion |

8.

| . .
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls

system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAIL

|

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N5a0016

R
PankajKhandelia

Partner
Membership Number: 102022

>
Y

UDIN: 25102022BMOKWHG6407

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2025
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to the members of Rustomjee
March 31, 2025

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the

books of account and records examined by us during the course of our
knowledge and belief, we repart that:

i. (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

ii.

(b)

iii. (a)

audit, and to the best of our
(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing| full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any Intangible assets and accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

The Company does not own any immovable properties (Refer Note 46(xiii) to the financial

statements). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the (
Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and E
Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the
valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of ¢

Drder is not applicable to the

quipment during the year.
revaluation is based on the
‘hange, if the change is 10%

or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each ¢

lass of Property, Plant and

Equipment does not arise. :

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending again?:.t the Company for holding
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988))
and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the
Company has appropriately disclosed the details in the ﬁnancirjd'l statements does not arise.

(a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at !reasonable intervals by the

Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by Management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical
verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for
each class of inventory.

During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate from banks and financial institutions and accordingly, the question
of our commenting on whether the guarterly returns or statements are in agreement with
the unaudited books of account of the Company does not arise. (Refer Note 46(ii) to the
financial statements)

The Company has made investments in one mutual fund and granted unsecured loan to one
company. The Company has not granted secured loans, secured/unsecured advance in
nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any |parties during the year. The
aggregate amount during the year and balance outstanding at {the balance sheet date with
respect to such loan are as per the table given below:
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Particulars Loans

(Rs. in Lakh)

Aggregate amount granted,/ provided during the year
- Holding Company 2,735

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of the above case

- Holding Company 2,735

(b) In respect of the aforesaid investments and loan, the terms and conditions under which such
investments were made/ loan was granted ave not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) In respect of the loan, the schedule of repayment of principal has been stipulated, and the
party 1s repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, (Refer Note 33(II)(d) to the financial
statements and refer clause (iii)(e) below)

(d) Inrespect of the loan, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days.

(e) Following loan were granted to same parties, which has fallen due during the year and were
renewed/extended. Further, no fresh loans were granted to settle the overdue loans.
|

Name of the parties Aggregate amount of | Percentage of the
loans granted aggregate to the total
during the year (Rs. | loans granted during the
in Lakh) year

Keystone Realtors Limited 8,482 l 310.13%

(f) The loan granted during the year to promoter had stipulated the scheduled repayment of
principal and the same were not repayable on demand. (Also refer note 33(11)(d) to the
financial statements).

. The Company has not provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under
Section 185 and 186 of the Act. In our opinion, the Compqlmy has complied with the
provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act to the extent applicable in in respect of the
loans and investments made by it. The Company is engaged |in providing infrastructure
facilities as specified in Schedule VI of the Act and accordingly, provisions of Section 186
except sub-section (1) of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
referred in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules fiamed there under.

Adambal
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vi.

vil. (a)

(b)

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India
maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the A
We have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion that
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We
detailed examination of the records with a view to determine ¥y
complete.

In our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing tl
in respect of income tax, though there has been a slight delay 1
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including goods and s
cess, service tax and other statutory dues, as applicable, with

ts LLP

: {0 the members of Rustomjee
March 31, 2025

, the Company is required to
\ct in respect of its products.
, brima facie, the prescribed
have not, however, made a
vhether they are accurate or

he undisputed statutory dues
1 few cases, and is regular in
ervices tax, provident fund,
the appropriate authorities.

Also, refer Note 42 to the financial statements regarding management's assessment on

certain matters relating to provident fund.

The particulars of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a)
have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows

as at March 31, 2025 which

Name of the Nature | Amount | Period to which
statute of dues | (Rs. in |the amount
Lakh) relates

(Financial Year)

Forum where the
dispute is pending

The Income | Income 1| 2015-16 Commissioner of Income
Tax Act, 1961 | Tax Tax (Appeals),
Maharashira
|
The Income | Income 13 | 2021-22 || Commissioner of Income
Tax Act, 1961 | Tax || Tax (Appeals),
| Maharashtra
The Income | Income 1,755 | 2013-14 and | Assessing Officer,
Tax Act, 1961 | Tax 2017-18 i Maharashtra
The Finance Service 9,422 | 2010-11 to 2015-16 || Customs,  Excise &
Act, 1944 Tax# Service Tax Appellate
| Authority, Maharashtra
Goods and | GST # 390 | 2017-18 | GsT Appellate Authority,
Service Tax | Maharashtra
Goods and | GST 1,074 | 2017-18 High Court of Bombay
Service Tax
Goods and | GST 1,044 | 2018-19 to 2020- || Joint Commissioner,
Service Tax 21 CGST & Central Excise,
Maharashtra
Goods and | GST# 208 | 2017-18 Commissioner of GST
Service Tax | (Appeals), Maharashtra

. \
= Lha ";";-'::F_!.'.{jnls }
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Name of the | Nature | Amount | Period to which|/| Forum where the
statute ofdues | (Rs. in |the amount| | dispute is pending
Lakh) relates
(Financial Year)
Goods and | GST # 110 | 2018-19 to 2021-|| Deputy Commissioner of
Service Tax 22 State Tax, Appeals,
Maharashtra

viii.

ix. (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

x. (a)

ts LLP

= to the members of Rustomjee

March 31, 2025

# Net of amounts paid under protest of INR 367 Lakh for Service tax and Rs 63 Lakh for

GST.

There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax as
Tax Act, 1961.

sessments under the Income

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other bor’romnvs or in the payment

of interest to any lender during the vear.

On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Com
Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or gove
autharity.

The Campany has not obtained any term loans during the yea
there was no unutilized balance of term loan obtained in earli
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not

ipany has not been declared
rnment or any government

r ended March 31, 2025 and
er years as on April 1, 2024.
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, an;

the procedures performed

by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not raised funds on short-term basis. Accordxﬁg]y, reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,

we teport that the Company did not have any subsidiaries 4 joint ventures or associate

companies during the vear. Accordingly, reporting under clau
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and
we report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries,
companies during the year. Accordingly, reporting under claus

applicable to the Company. ‘

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial publi¢

(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly,
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

e 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not

procedures performed by us,
joint ventures or associate
e 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not

offer or further public offer
the reporting under clause

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully

or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the vea
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Comp

r. Accordingly, the reporting
any.
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xi. (a)

(b)

()

Xii.

Xiii.

During the course of our examination of the books and records
in accordance with the generally acecepted anditing practices in
across any instance of material fraud by the Company or a
reported during the vear, nor have we been informed of any su

During the course of our examination of the books and records
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in
143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule

Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with

ts LLP

o {0 the members of Ruslomjee
March 41, 2025

of the Company, carried out
India, we have neither come
n the Company, noticed or
ch case by the Management.

of the Campany, carried out
India, a report under Section
13 of Companies (Audit and
the Central Government.

Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the OIdEl is not applicable to the

Company. |

During the course of our examination of the books and records
in acecordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in
us by the management, no whistle-blower complaints have bee
the Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(¢)
to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules,
the reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable

The Company has entered into transactions with related par

of the Company carried out
India, and as represented to
n received during the year by
of the Order is not applicable

2014 are not applicable to it,
to the Company.

ties in compliance with the

provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The details of related p

arty transactions have been

disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24
“Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is
not required to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act and, accordingly,
to this extent, the reporting under elause 3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xiv. (a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and

nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period

XV.

under audit.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with him, Accordingly, the repurtmg on compliance with the
pravisions of Section 192 af the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a] of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking finaneial / housing finance activities during

the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of t
the Company.

he Order is not applicable to

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made

by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under
is not applicable to the Company.

clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order




Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Reporl of even dale Lo the members of Rustomjee
Realty Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended|March 31, 2025

Page 6 0f 6

(d) In our opinion, the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)

xvid,

Xviii.

Xix.

Xx1.

Directions, 2016) does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other infarmation accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncert?nty exists as on the date of

the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
ot balance sheet as and when they tall due within a period of ong year trom the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the tacts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due. i

As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under
Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not appli'rable in respect of audit of
Standalone Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has
been included in this report. '

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

i R
Panicﬁhandelia

e

J S

ol

Partner

Membership Number; 102022
UDIN: 25102022BMOKWHG6407

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2025




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. s at As at
Particulars Bite Marcl‘:; 1, 2025 Maurch 31, 2024
ASSETS i :

Noun-current assets
Froperty, plant and equipment a - 0
Financial assets
i. [nvestmenlts z 13,705 12,947
ii. Other financial assets 4 5 40
Current tax assets (net) 597 652
Deferred tax assets (net) 32 6 19
Other non-current assets 6 923 503
Total non-current assets 15,236 14,170
Current assets
Inventorics 7 59 7.060
Financial assets
i. ‘I'rade receivables 8 8 678
ii. Cash and cash equivalents q 6,628 187
iti. Bank balances other than (ii) above 10 260 861
iv. Loans 11 11,217 11,217
v. Other financial assets 12 19 30
Other eurrent assets 13 229 724
Total eurrent assets 18,413 20,757
Total assels §:=3:649 34,927
EQUITY AND LIARILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14(a) 118 118
Other equity
Reserves and surplus 14(h) 20,486 19,843
Total equity 20,604 19.961
LIABIIITIES
Non-current liabitities
Hinancial liabilities
i. Other financial liabilities 16 8,215 8,682
Provisions 17 3 3
Total non-current liabilities 8,215 8,685
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Barrowings 18 208 3,072
ii. Trace payables
a) Dues to micro and small enterprises 19 108 63
[1) Tatal outstanding dues of creditors other than (ii) (a) above 19 3,794 794
1ii. Other tfinancial liabilities 20 455 349
Provisions 21 - 19
Current tax fiabilities (net) 0o 253 71
Other curreut liabilities 29 12 1,913
E‘__s;-l.al current liabilities W 4,830 6,281
Total liabilites 1 13.045 14,5666
Lotal equity and liabilities ' 33,649 34,027




The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No.: 012754N / N500016

E g
LY w\hf
< N
Pankq@andelia
Partner
Membership No. 102022

Mumbai
Date : May 14, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
CIN: Uyo1oo0MHz003PTC140087

@5{ S !

4

ohinton Batliwalla Shovir Pervez Irani
irector Director

DIN: 03471974

Mumbai
Date : May 14, 2025

DIN: 07986048



Rustomjec Realty Private Limited

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income
Revenue {rom operations 24 11,770 2,487
Other income a5 422 184
Total income 12,192 2,87
Expenses
Construction costs 20 3,611 -
Changes in inventories of completed saleable units 27 6,933 1,549
Employee benefits expense 28 90 126
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 10 9
Finance costs 30 70 6ho5
(Other expenses 31 443 368
Total expenses 11,157 2,657
Profit before tax 1,035 214
Income tax expense

Current tax g2 380 36

Deferred tax 22 12 (10}
Total tax expense 392 26
Profit for the year 642 188
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 37 - 11

Income tax relating to above item 32 - (3)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - 3
Total comprehensive income for the year 643 196
Earnings per equity share (basic and diluted)
Equity shares [Nominal value per share: INR 1o (March 31, 2024; INR 38 _m— 54 16

10}]




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No.: 012754N / N500016

b

3}’

i
o
N

Pankaj Khandelia

Pariner
Membership No. 102022

Mumbai
Date : May 14, 2025

For and on behalf of
Rustomjee Realty Pr
CIN: Uyoio00MH2003F

IN: 03471974

Mumbai
Date : May 14, 2025

the Board of Direciors of
ivate Limited
TCi40087

hovir Pervez Irani
Director
DIN: 07986948




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, zo25
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note

Cash tlows from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29
Finance costs 30
TInwinding of discount on financial instruments - at amortized 25
cost
[nterest income 25
Credit impaired - Trade receivables a1

Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in working capital:
Decrease in inventories
Decrease / ( Increase) in trade receivables
Decrease / (Increase) in other assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
(Decrease) in other financial liabilities
(Decrease) / Increase in non-cutrent provisions
(Decrease) in current provisions
(Decrease) [/ Increase in other current liabilities
Cash generated generated from operations
Taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Repayment of intercompany loan from related party 11
Payments for property, plant and equipment and intangibles

assets

Payvments for purchase of investment 9
Intercompany loan given to related party 11
Proceeds from redemption of investment 3
Bank deposits placed 10
Bank deposits matured 10

Interest received
Net cash inflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Finance costs paid 30

Net cash outflow from financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and eash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4]
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

T e,

, -.._'_‘_;_h
o .ce Charteres =
‘.\‘.""b sed d‘i.\ B~

7 oRs
’ o

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1,035 214
10 9
70 605
417) (372)
(5) (8)
67 =
TH0 448
7001 1,549
H03 {608)
82 (47)
3,045 (696)
(082) {681)
(3) 2
(19) (20)
(1,901) 1,832
8,586 1,779
(143) (169)
8,443 1,610
24735 8o1
(830) (7.969)
(2,735) -
1110 8,255
(2,738) (444)
3.859 748
31 26
932 1,417
- 8oo0
(2,854) (3,965)
(80) (572)
(2,334) (3,737)
6,441 (710)
187 897
o 6,628 187




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Non-cash financing and investing activities

Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Unwinding of discount on financial instrument - at amortized cost 417 372
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per statement of cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:

Cash on hand 9 25 25
Cheques on hand 6,459 -
Balances with banks

In current accounts 9 144 162
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6,628 187
The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No.: 012754N / N500016 Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
CIN: U7o100MH2003PTC140087
v
V‘\Ff-" :
- J :
Pankaj Khandelia 1 Shovir Pervez Irani
Partner Director

Membership No. 102022

Mumbai Mumbai
Date : May 14, 2025 Date : May 14, 2025

DIN: 07986948



Rustomjee Realty Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise sta ted)

A. Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
As at March 31, 2023 118
Changes in equity share capital -
As at March 31, 2024 118
Changes in equity share capital -
As at March 31, 2025 118
B. Other equity
Reserve and{surplus

Particulars Securities Debenture fn & C.'T-hel'

= L X Retained ety

premium  redemption A

earnings

account reserve
As at March 31, 2023 1,008 21 18,528 19,647
Profit for the year - - 188 188
Other comprehensive (loss) - - 3 8
Total - - 196 196
As at March 31, 2024 1,098 21 18,724 19,843
Profit for the year - E 643 643
Other comprehensive income = = = 2
Total E: - 643 643
As at March 31, 2025 1,098 21 19,367 20,486

=
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Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Firm Registration No.: 012754N / N500016 Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
CIN: Uyo100MH2003P[C140087

yo* e
P

o™ L
o
Pank\ghandelia lrlton Batliwalla Shovir Pervez Irani
Partner irector Director
Membership No. 102022 IN: 03471974 DIN: 07086948
Mumbai Mumbai

Date : May 14, 2025 Date ; May 14, 2025




Rustomjec Realty Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Background
Rustomijee Realty Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a privale limited Company, incorporated and domic
office at 702, Natraj, M V Road .Junction, Andheri Fast, Mumbadi 1200 069.

The Company is ineorporated since April 22, 2003 and is engaged primarily in the business of real estate co

related activities in Tndia.
Note 1 (A): Basis of preparation
(i) Compliance with Ind AS

iled in [ndia and has its registered

1structions, development and other

The financial statements of the company comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of

the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended fi
provisions of the Act.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following;
« certain financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value;

= defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

(iii) Current - non current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's operating cy
Schedule TII to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of business and the time bebween the acquisitig
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 4 years for th
classification of assets and liabilities relating to its project. Operating evele for all other cases including
months period.

Note 1 (B): Material Accounting policies
(a) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred|
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or servi
the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other credits, if any, as specifiec

pm time to time and other relevant

cle and other criteria set out in the
n of assets for processing and their
e purpose ol current - non-current
completed projects is based on 12

to the customer at an amount that
ces. Revenue is measured based on
1 in the contract with the customer.

The Company presents revenue from contracts with customers net of indirect taxes in its statement of Profit and Loss. The Company assesses its

revenue arrangements against specific eriteria to determine if it is acting as prineipal or agent, The Company
principal in all of its revenue arrangement.

Income from Property development
The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance ol
Lransaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Company considers the e
existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the cust

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognise the revenue over the lime if the Company's p
with an alternative use to the Company and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for perforn

* has concluded that it is acting as a

sligations to which a portion of the
ffects of variable consideration, the
pmer (if any).

arformance does not create an assel
nance completed Lo date basis the

agreement entered with customers, otherwise revenue is recognized point in time. The revenue from real estate development of residential unit

is recognised at the point in time, when the control of the asset is transferred to the customer and the perfo
transfer of legal title of the residential unit, receipt of oecupation certificate and final demand letter issueq
oceurs on completion of project.

The Company becomes entitled to invoice customers for canstruction of residential and commercial prope
construction-linked milestones. When the Company satisties a performance obligation by delivering the pro
contract asset based on the amount of consideration earned by the performance. Any amount previously
reclassified to trade receivables at the point when the Company has the right to consideration that is
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recogn
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company pe

The Company recognizes incremental costs for obtaining a contract as an asset and such costs are charged
when revenue is recognised for the said contract.

(b) Income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax pavable on the current period’s taxable income base
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities atiributable to temporary differences and to unused {

(i) Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at t
provision for current tax is made at the rate of tax as applicable for the income of the previous year as defined

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which app
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and in
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

" ‘_-___‘1 co _,“ .
N AAC-500
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rmance obligation is satisfied i.e on
i to the customers which generally

rties based on achieving a series of
mised goods or services it creates a
v recognised as a contract asset is
unconditional. If a customer pays
ised when the payment is made or
:rforms under the contract.

o the Statement of Profit and Loss

d on the applicable income tax rate
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Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
Notes to the financial statemments as at and for the year ended March 41, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(i1} Deferred tax
Deferred incomne tax is recognised using the lability method, on lemporary differences arising between the t
their carrying amounts as per financial statements as at the reporting date. Deferred income fax is not ad
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the timg
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enactey
and are expected Lo apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax 1i

ax bases of assets and liabilities and
counted for if it arises from initial
of the transaction affects neither

] by the end of the reporting period

ipbility is settled.

Deferred tax assels are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be avaflable against which the deductible

temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be utilise

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the exten
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unred
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future ta
tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recogniseq
directly in equily. In this case, the lax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
(¢) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash ¢
financial institutions, other short-lerm highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
readily convertible to known amounts of eash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 1y
within borrowings in ecurrent liabilities in the balance sheet.

(d) Trade receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary cg

d.

that it is no longer probable that
ognised deferred tax assets are re-
xable profits will allow the deferred

assets and liabilities and when the

1in other comprehensive income or
respectively.

n hand, deposits held on call with
or less than three months that are
value. Bank overdrafts are shown

urse of business. Trade receivables

are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The company holds the trade

receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subset
effective interest method, less loss allowance.

(e) Inventories

Inventories are valued as under:

(i) Construction work-in-progress and completed saleable units
The construction work-in-progress and completed saleable units are valued at lower of cost or net realisable y
Cost includes cost of land, development rights, rates and taxes, construction material, borrowing co
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, Cost of inventories also include all o
inventories to their present location and condition.

juently at amortised cost using the

ralue.
sts, other direct expenditure, and
her costs incurred in bringing the

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale,

i) Construction materials
The construction materials are valued at lower of cost or net realisahle value. Cost of construction mater
moving weighted average basis. Costs of inventory includes rates and taxes and other direct expenditure are
and discounts.

(f) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liabil
entity.

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisio
Financial assets:

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

» those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through pr

« those measured at amortised cost
The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractu

Initial recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Com;

the financial asset. Finaneial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus (excluding trade receivables

ial comprises cost of purchases on
determined after deducting rebates

ty or equity instrument of another

ns of the instrument.

ofit or loss), and

al terms of the cash flows.

panies commits to purchase or sale
which do not contain a significant

financing companent), in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to

the acquisition of the financial asset. Transacton costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit

loss.

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are subsequently measured al amortised cosl, fair value through other com prehensi\ e ineg
profit or loss (‘FVTPL) Lill de-recogunition on the b-l:.Lt. uf (i)-lhae :x[lm'.:. bmeebs model for managing the fing

cash flow characteristies of the financial asset.

or loss are expensed of in profit or

e (‘FYOCI) pp-{amx_hﬂlu\ e through
neial a'at.elsf"n £|1§ ﬂfp "bﬂ‘imuu.ﬂ




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payt
megsured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amorti
relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from
other income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL):

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss in the period in w
these financial assets are recognised in other income.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCIL Movements in the carrying amount are t
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and logses which are
the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassifief
recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other incor
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other.

Equity instruments
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are |
FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at fair value th
(FVTOCI) or FVTPL,

The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initig
If the Comipany decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the ig
recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to pr
investments.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL eategory are measured af fair value with all changes recogy
loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when:

» the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the [inancial asset or

« retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assel, but assumes a contractual obl
or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially al
the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred s
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of o
financial asset is derecognized if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Com
asset, the assel is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Income recognition

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest rate method
profit and loss as part of other income.

nents of principal and interest are
sed cost and not part of a hedging
these financial assets is incliuded in

loss on a debt investment that is
hich it arises, Interest income from

assets’ cash flows represent solely
alen through OCI, except for the
recognised in profit and loss. When
tl from equity to profit or loss and
ne using the effective interest rate

1eld for trading are classified as at
rough other comprehensive income

| recognition and is irrevocable.
strument, excluding dividends, are

bfit and loss, even on sale of such

ised in the statement of profit and

gation to pay the cash flows to one

risks and rewards of ownership of
ibstantially all risks and rewards of

wrnership of the financial asset, the
pany retains control of the financial

and recognised in the statement of

Interest income is calculated by applyving the effective interest rate ta the gross carrying amount of financial gsset except for financial assets that

subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective rate is applied {
financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Dividend income
Dividends are received from [inancial assets at fair value through profit or loss and at FVOCI. Dividends are 1
or loss when the right to receive payment is established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-acqu
clearly a recavery part of the cost of the investment.

Other income
All other income is accounted on acerual basis when no significant uncertainty exist regarding the amount tha

Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement

Finaneial liabilities are initially measured at its fair value plus or minus, in the ease of a financial liability not
transaction costs that are divectly attributable to the issue/ origination of the financial liability.

Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified o
for trading, or it is a derivalive or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities al FVTPT
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Other fi
measured al amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gai
statement of profit and loss, Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the statement of profit an

o the nel carrying amount of the

ecognised as other income in profit
isition profits, unless the dividend

at will be received.
at fair value through profit or loss,

5 at FVTPL if it is classified as held
are measured at fajr value and net
nancial liabilitiésare subs
ns and losse$ are pécogniser i

il loss. ’_.' / !
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Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specitied in the contract is discharged, cancelled ar e

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there i
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.

(h) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services pravided to the Company prior to the end of finz
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the

as applicahle. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost u

(i) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs ineurred. Borrowings are subsequeny

difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Kpires,

a legally enforceable right to offset
liability simultaneousiy. The legally
business and in the event of default,

5

1

incial year which are unpaid. Trade
reporting period or operating cycle,
sing the effective interest method.

tly measured at amortised cost. Any
rofit or loss over the period of the

H

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified as liabilities. The dividends on these preference shares are

recognised in profit or loss as finance costs,
Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,

between the carrving amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to anothe
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other incor

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different

cancelled or expired, The difference
party and the consideration paid,
e / other expenses.

erms shall be accounted for as an

extinguishment of the original finaneial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a sibstantial modification of the terms

of an existing financial liability or a part of it (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The differeng
financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred to another party and the conside

assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss,

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer sett
months after the reporting period, Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arra

reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the en

current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements
a consequence of the breach.

(j) Borrowing cost

General and specific horrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or p

capitalised during the period of time (except for the contract on which revenue is recognised over the

complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assefs are assets that necessarily tak

ready for their intended use or sale. Capitalisation of borrowing eosts is suspended and charged to the
extended periods when active development activily on the qualifying asset is interrupted.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure o

the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

(k) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past ever
resources embodying economic benefits will be required Lo settle the obligation and there is a reliable estin

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required t¢
end of the reporting period. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined

cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expe

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existenc|
the oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of tl

that arises fromn past events where it is either not prabahle that an outflow of resources will be required
estimate ol the amount cannot be made.

the debtor) is accounted for as an
re between the carrying amount of a
ration paid, including any nen-cash

lement of the liability for at least 48
ngement on or before the end of the
tity does not classify the liability as
or issue, not to demand payment as

i

roduction of a qualifying assel are
period of time) that is required to
e a substantial period of time to get
statement of profit and loss during

n qualifving assets is deducted from

its, it is probable that an outflow of
ate of the amount of the obligation.

settle the present obligation at the
by discounting the expected future
risks specific to the liability. Where
nse.

e of which will be confirmed only by
12 Company, or g_pj_nf.«;gui‘ubligation
to settle the ebligation or-a reliable




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(1) Employee benefits

(i) Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-menetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly wi
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of empl
reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

(ii) Other long term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within period of operating cycle after
employvees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future
services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method
the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the relate
result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss. The g
liabilities in the balance sheet if the Company does net have an unconditional right to defer settlement
reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expeeted to oceur.

(iii) Post-employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes,
defined benefit plan i.e. Gratuity
defined contribution plans such as provident fund
Gratuity obligations
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the p
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation
using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benelit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated futiire eas
vields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of
The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit o
assets. This cost is included in employee benefils expense in the statement of profit and loss.
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptig
which they oceur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailm
profit or loss as pasl service cost.

Defined contribution plans

Lhin period of operating cycle after
vees' services up to the end of the

the end of the period in which the
payments to be made in respect of
. The benefits are discounted using
d obligation. Remeasurements as a
bligations are presented as current
or at least twelve months after the

esent value of the defined henefit
is caleulated annually by actuaries

h autflows by reference to market
the related obligation.
hligation and the fair value of plan

ns are recognised in the period in

ents are recognised immediately in

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Company has no further

payment obligation once the contributions have been paid. The contribulions are accounted for as de
contributions are recognised as employee benefits expense when they are incurred.

(iv) Employee options

The fair value of options granted under the Rustomjee Employee Stock Option Plan 2022 is recognised as a
corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to Lhe fair valu
« including anv market performance conditions (e.g. the entity’s share price).

Jfined contribution plans and the

n employee benefits expense with a
& of Lhe options granted:

- excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, salés growth targets and remaining an

employee of the entity over a specified time period).

« including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.z. the requirement for employees to save or hold shar
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified ve
At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest b:
service conditions. Tt recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, w
equity. For Group transactions involve repayment arrangements that require one group entity to pav anoth
the share-based payments to the suppliers of goods or services. In such cases, the entity that receives the g
cash-settled share-based payment transaction.

Where shares are forfeited due to a failure by the employee to satisfy the service conditions, any expenses
stich shares are reversed effective from the date of the forfeiture.

(m) Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

« The profit attributable to owners of respective class of equity shares of the Company.

* By the weighted average number of equity shares (respective class wise) outstanding during the financial vear.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures nsed in the determination of basic earnings per share to lake in
« the after income tax effect of interest and ather financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shar
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
equity shares.

as for a specific period of time).
sting conditions are to be satisfied.
ed on the non-market vesting and
ith a corresponding adjustment to
r group entity for the provision of
ods or services shall account as a

reviously recognised in relation to
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Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amonnts in INR lakhs; unless otherwise stated)

Note 1 (C): Other Accounting policies
(a) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief ope

rating decision maker (CODM).

The Board of Directors of the Company has been identified as being the CODM as they assesses the financial performance and position af the

Company, and makes strategic decisions.

(b) Foreign currency translation
(i) 'unctional and presentalion currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary ¢

entity operates (‘the functional currency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (I
presentation currency of the Company,

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlemeni of such transactions and from the translation
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. A mg

conomic environment in which the
NR), which is the functional and

dates of the transactions. Foreign
of monetary assets and liabilities
netary item for which settlement is

neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future is considered as a part of the entity's net investment in that foreign operation.

(c) Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually fo
events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairmn
circumstances indicate that the carrving amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair valu

r impairment, or more frequently if
1ent whenever events or changes in
or the amount by which the asset's
e less costs of disposal and value in

uge. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped al the lowest levels for which there are geparately identifiable cash inflows

which are largely independent of the cash inflows [rom other assets or groups of assels (cash-generating uni
zoodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each

Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried

ts). Non-financial assets other than
reporting period.

al amortised cost. The impairment

methadology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 35 details how the Company determines

whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

(d) Property, plant and equipment
[tems of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impai
the purchase price including import duties and non-refundable taxes and directly attributable expenses
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of being operated in the manner intended by managemet

Subsequent costs are ineluded in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropr
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repai
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation is caleulated using the written down value method (exeept for office improvements which are
method), to allocate their cost, net of residual values, over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The esti
with the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, excepl in case of plant and machinery which is based o
management's expert, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The residual values are not more than
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each report

The management estimates the useful life for the property, plant and equipment as follows:

Asset Useful Life
Plant and machinery 6 years
Oflice equipment 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Computers 3 years
Vehicles 8 years

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are incl
income / other expenses,

rment. Historical cost comprises of
incurred to bring the asset to the
nt.

iate, only when it is probable that
se measured reliably. The carrying
rs and maintenance are charged [0

being depreciated on straight line
mated useful lives is in accordance
n technical evaluation done by the
5% of the original cost of the asset.
ing period.

uded in pmﬁ_t‘k; :";'Dss_w:if‘ﬁin-.pther

'y




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, zoz25
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(c) Intangible assets
Tntangzible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. [ntangible assets are
amorlised on a written down value basis over their estimated useful lives.

The management estimates the useful life for the inlangible asset is as follows:
Asset Useful 1ife
Computer software 5 vears

The amortisation period and the amoertisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Tf the expected useful life of the asset is
significantly different [rom previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are incjuded in profit or loss within other
income / other expenses.

(f) Contributed equity
Equity shares are classitied as equity.
meremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(g) Dividend
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or
before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Note t (D): Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards adopted by the Company
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated g September 2024 and 28 September 2024 notified|the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Third Amendment Rules, 2024, respectively, which
amended/ notified certain accounting standards (see below), and are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024:

» Insurance contracts - Ind AS 117; and

+ Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback — Amendments to Ind AS 116
These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are nol expected to significantly affect the

current or future periods.




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited

Noles to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 2 - Property, plant and equipment

Furnilure

Particulars and O.fﬁcc l’lant‘ wad Computers| Vehicles Total
Eihtes equlpmunt nlac]uner}'

Year ended March 31, 2024

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 19 11 19 15 25 89

Additions - = = - - -

Disposals - - - - - -

Closing gross carrying amount 19 11 19 15 25 89

Accumulated depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation 17 9 17 11 17 71

Depreciation charge during the year 1 o 1 3 2 9

Disposals - - - - = -
[Closing accumulated depreciation 18 11 18 14 19 80

Net carrying amount 1 * 1 1 6 9

Year ended March 31, 2025

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 9 11 19 15 25 89

Additions - - B - - B

Disposals - - - - - -

Closing gross carrying amount 19 11 19 15 25 89

Accumulated depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation 18 11 18 14 19 8o

Depreciation charge during the year 1 1 1 1 6 9

Disposals - - - - - -

Closing accumulated depreciation 19 11 19 15 25 89

Net carrying amount




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 3 - Non-corrent investments

: As at
Particulars

March 31, 2

025

As at
March 31, 2024

Investment in equity instruments (fully paid up)
Ungquoted (valued at fair value through profit and loss)

4,000 [March 31, 2024: 4,000] equity shares of Zoroastrian Co- 1 1
operative Bank Limited of INR 25 each, (fully paid up)

Investment in Preference Shares (Unquoted)

In fellow subsidiary company (Value at amortised cost)

44,35,000 [March 31, 2024: 44,35,000] 8% Non cumulative 4,888 3,471
redeemable preference shares of Rs 100 each fully paid-up held in

Credence Property Developers Private Limited

In fellow subsidiary company (Value at cost)

44,35,000 [March 31, 2024: 44,35,000] 8% Non cumulative 1,018 1,618
redeemable preference shares of Rs 100 each fully paid-up held in

Credence Property Developers Private Limited

Investment in Mutual funds {Unquoted) (valued at fair vaiue

through profit and loss)

4,686,987 [March 31, 2024: 4,686,987] Units in Edelweiss Mutual 616 568
Fund- Bharat Bond - Direct plan

15,020 [March 31, 2024: 21,815] Units in HDFC Mutual Fund - HDFC 811 1,035
Liquid-DP- Growth Option

1,080,983 [March 31, 2024: 1,080,083 Units in HDFC Mutual Fund - 621 5606
HDEC Gilt Fund-DP-Growth Fund

254,858 [March 31, 2024: 354,858] Units in ICICI Prudential Liquid 1,362 1,268
Fund - Direet Plan - Growth

2,523,879 [March 31, 2024: 2,523,879] Units in ICICI Prudential 623 567
Constant Maturity Gilt Fund - Direct Plan - Growth

4,783,372 [March 31, 2024: 4,783,372] Units in Bandhan Mutual Fund - 611 563
Bandhan CRISIL IBX Gilt April 2028 Index Fund Direct Plan - G

29,086 [March 31, 2024: 29,086] Units in TATA Mutual Fund - Direct 1,371 1,270
plan growth

20,663 [March 31, 2024: 29,663] Units in Kotak Mutual Fund - Kotak 1,554 1,447
Liquid Direct Plan

193 [March 31, 2024: 193] Units in Bandhan Mutual Fund - Bandhan 6 6
Liquid Fund - G - Direct Plan

060,044 [March 31, 2024: 960,044] Units in SBI Magnum Constant 623 567
Maturity Fund Direct Growth

Total 3,705 12,947

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of unquoted investment
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the yvear ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 4 - Other non-current financial assets

Particulars asat SRl

i | March 31, 4025 March 31, 2024
Long-term deposits with banks - deposits with maturities of more than 5 40
12 months®
Total 5 40

*This ineludes deposit of INR 5 (March 31, 2024: INR 40) primarily on account of deposits held as lien or margin money
deposits against guarantee and borrowings.

Note 5 - Income tax assets (net)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Advance tax including tax deducted at source [net of provision for tax of 597 652
INR 8,174 (March 31, 2024: INR 5,158)]

Total 597 652
Note 6 - Other non-current assets
Particulars vl g

] March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deposit with government authorities 430 411
Balance with government authorities 493 92
Total 923 503

Note 7 - Inventories

aiticilath As at As at
e March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Completed saleable units - 6,933
Construction materials 59 127
Total 59 7,060

Note: Refer notes below Note 15 and 18 for information on inventories offered as security against borrowings taken by the
Company and refer Note 43 for its carrying amount.

Note 8 - Trade receivables

As at As at

Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Unsecured, considered good

Trade receivables = 065
Receivables from related party (Refer note 33) 8 13
Total 8 ¥ 678




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the yvear ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Break-up of security details ik

March 31, Zjo25

As at
March 31, 2024

T'rade receivables considered good — Unsecured

8

w

67,

Total trade receivables

B

o

67

Note 1: Trade receivable include INR 8 (March 31, 2024: INR 8) due from firms or private comp
a partner or director or member.

Note 2: Refer notes below Note 15 and 18 for information on inventories offered as security agai
Company and refer Note 43 for its carrying amount.

Trade receivables ageing schedules
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good

anies in which any divector is

15t borrowings taken by the

Particulars aeat e
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Not due = =
Less than 6 months = 599
6 months - 1 years - 12
1- 2 years 8 =
2- 3 years - -
More the 3 years = 67
Total 8 678
There are no disputed trade receivables
Note g - Cash and cash equivalents
. As at As at
i March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balances with banks
In current accounts 144 162
Cheque on hand 6,459 =
Cash on hand 25 25
Total 6,628 187
Note 10 - Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
: ; As at As at
Particulars -
% March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balances with banks
In deposits accounts * 10 15
In deposits accounts 250 846
Total 260 861
*This represent restricted deposits against margin money deposits and guarantees.
Note 11 - Current loans
Particulars ivh Asa
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Loans to related parties (Refer note 33) 11,217 11,217
Total #0217 11,217

’
i

r




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March ;

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Breal-up of security details

As at
March 31, 2oz25

As at
March 31, 2024

Loans considered good - Secured

l.oans considered good - Unsecured 11,217 iy 5
Loans which have significant increase in credit risk - 3
Loans — credit impaired - <
Total 11,217 11,217
Loss allowance - E
Total loans 11,217 11,217

Loans ave granted to the related parties, that are interest free are as below:

Type of Borrower

Amount of loan or
advance in|the
nature of lpan

outstanding

Percentage to the
total Loans and
Advances
in the nature of
loans

As at March 31, 2025
Promoters

Directors

KMPs

Related Parties

11,217

As at March 31, 2024
Promoters

Directors

KMPs

Related Parties

11,217

100%

Note 12 - Other current financial assets

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Deposits with bank remaining maturity of less than 12 months 15 -
Interest acerued on deposits with banks 4 30
Total 19 30

Note 13 - Other current assets

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Advances to suppliers - 210
Balance with government authorities 212 514
Prepayments 10 =
Total 222 724




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
Noles to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 14 - Equity share capital and other equity
Nole 14(a) - Equity share capital
(i) Authorised share capital

Particulars As pt As at
i March 3t, zoz5  March 31, 2024

2.110,000 (March 31, 2024: 2,110,000) Equity shares of INR 10 each 211 211
Total 211 211
(ii) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Particulars As pt As at

i March 311, 2025 March 31, 2024
1,180,860 (March 31, 2024: 1,180,860) Equity shares of INR 10 each (fully paid-up) 18 118
Total 118 118

(iii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:
a) Equity shares:

Each sharehelder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Direg
the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the
shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all prefe;
their shareholding.

(iv) Movement in equity share capital

tors is subject to the approval of
event of liquidation, the equity
rential amounts, in proportion to

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Farticulare Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Equity shares
Balance as at the beginning of the year 11,80,860 118 11,80,860 118
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
Balance as at the end of the year 11,80,860 118 11,380,860 118
(v) Shares of the company held by holding company
As|at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Equily shares
1,180,860 [March 31, 2024: 1,180,860] shares held by Keystone Realtors Limited 18 118
(Refer note (ix) below)
(vi) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Particulars Number of shares % Holding
Equity shares
Keystone Realtors Limited
Asat March 31, 2024 11,580,860 100%
As al March 31, 2025 1 100%

1,80,860
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Notes to the tinancial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(vii) Shareholding of promoters are disclosed below:

Name of Promoters Number of shares % Total

% Changes during

shares thi vea

As at March 31, 2025
Lquity shares

Keystone Realtors Limited 11,80,860

As at March 31, 2024
Equity shares

Keystone Realtors Limited 11,880,860

(viii) The Company has not allotted any equity shares for consideration other than cash and bonug
financial years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date and no equity shares bought back duri
preceding March 31, 2025,

(ix) By virtue of merger order approved by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) for t
Scheme) of Toccata Realtors Private Limited with Keystone Realtors Limited on May 4, 2023
transferred in the name of Keystone Realtors Limited (rom Toceata Realtars Private Limited.

Note t4(b) - Reserves and surplus

100% 0%

100% 10%
shares during the period of five

ng 5 financial years immediately

he scheme of amalgamation (the
the equity shares 118,020 got

Paitiabs As at As at

S bk March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Securities premium (Refer note (i) 1,008 1,008
Retained earnings (Refer note (ii)) 19,367 18,724
Debenture redemption reserve (Refer note (iit)) 21 21
Total 20,486 19,843
(i) Securities premium

s As|at As at

Eartinalaes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 1,008 1,098
Changes during the year - -
Closing balance 1,008 1,008
(ii) Retained earnings
Parkioalacs Year ended Year ended

% : March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Opening balance 18,724 18,528
Profit for the year 643 188
Other comprehensive income - remeasurements of post employment benefit plan - 8
Closing balance 19,367 18,724
(iii) Debenture redemption reserve
Paitisil i Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Opening balance 21 21
Less :- Transferred to retained earnings - -
Closing balance 21 21

Securities premium account

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issues of shares. This is utilised in accor
Companies Act 2013.

Debenture redemption reserve

The Company is required to create a debenture redemption reserve oul of the profits which is availg
for the purpose of redemption of non convertible debentures.
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Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 15 - Non-current borrowings

As at

Particulars March 31,

As at
March 31, 2024

153
o

Secured
Term loan from bank (Refer note below)

Less: Current maturity of long term borrowings ( included in current borrowings)

Less: Interest accrued but net due ( included in current borrowings)

2,004

(2,040)

(24)

Total

Note: Nature of security and terms of repayment
Term loan from bank

a) Secured against the development rights of Project Rustomjee Elements tower SC (wing "C") getti
20,218 Sqmts situated at Andheri Village new DN Nagar Andheri (west) Mumbai 53 at the survey n

ng constructed on land of
0 106, part 5 of CTS no 195.

b) Exelusive mortgage charge on project assets (viz. inventory of tower C over lease hold property) through registered mortgage

and Charge on ESCROW account along with RERA account to be maintained with the bank.

¢) Loan repayable in 8 quarterly installment of INR 2063 Lakhs starting from September 2022.
d) Loan carrying interest at the rate of 3.20% p.a above 1 year MCLR i.e. effective rate being 12.05 %

Note 16 - Other non-current financial liabilities

6 p.a.

Particulars A8RY axtat

A i March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Corpus fund payable to society (Refer note below) 8,215 8,682
Total 8,215 8.682

The Company collect corpus tund deposit from the customers. The Company has invested the corpu
and Mutual fund. The interest income / return accrued are first utilised for maintenance of the soci
corpus fund deposit are utilised.

The unspent balance of corpus fund deposit, post adjustment of the interest income/ return acerueg
utilisation of deposits (spent first from income acerned and then from corpus fund deposit) if any, s
handing over the society.

Note: Movement of corpus fund payable to society and utilisation.

s fund deposit in fixed deposits
ety, in case of any shortfall

1 and amount spent by
hall be refunded at the time of

. As at As at

P,
articyl g March 31, o025 March 31, 2024
Beginning of the year 8,682 8,695
Add: Collections from customers made during the year 127 163
Add: Returns on corpus collected 657 632
Less: Utilised during the year 1,251 808
Closing balance 8,215 8,682
Note 17 - Non-current provisions
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer note 37)

Total

Wl




Rustomjec Realty Private Limited
Noles to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise sta ted)

Note 18 - Current borrowings

Particulars it e
TRk Mavch 31, 2oz2s Marech 31, 2024
Unsecured

Debentures

Nil [March 31, 2024; 2,079,163] redeemable cumulative non-convertible 208 008
debentures of INR 10 each (refer note (ii) below) and (Refer note 33)

Loans

Loans from related parties (Refer note 33) - 8oo
Current maturity of long term borrowings# - 2,064
Total 208 3,072

# Tncludes interest accrued on long-term borrowings
Note : Borrowing are subsequently measured at amortised cost and therefore interest acerued on ¢
in the respective accounts

Note:-
i) Nature of security for terms loan and bank overdraft:

a) Secnred against the development rights of Project Rustomjee Elements tower SC (wing "C")
20,218 Sqmts situated at Andheri Village new DN Nagar Andheri (west) Mumbai 53 at the survey ¢

tirrent borrowings are included

gotting constructed on land of
10 106, part 5 of CTS no 195.

b)Exclusive mortgage charge on project assets (viz. inventory of tower C over lease hold property) through registered mortgage and

charge on ESCROW account along with RERA account to be maintained with our bank.

¢) Loan repayable in 8 quarterly installment of INR 2,063 Lakhs starting from September 2022,
d) Loan carrying interest at the rate of 3.20% p.a above 1 year MCLR i.e. effective rate being 12.05
ii) Redeemable cumulative non-convertible debentures
a. All the non-convertible debentures (NCDs) shall, inter se, rank pari passu, without any prefer
others or others of them shall be free from any encumbrance.
b. The NCDs shall carry an interest rate of 0.01% per annum on face value. These NCDs are repaya
c. Unless the NCDs are redeemed earlier, they shall be redeemed in full by paying the entire NCI
revised agreed date.

Note 19 - Trade payables

Y% p.a.
ence or priority of one over the

ble on demand.
) redemption amount, as per the

As al

Particulars
i March 31,

L

As at

2025 March 31, 2024

Trade payables

Dues to micro and small enterprises (Refer note 39) 108 63

Dues to others 3,699 794

Dues to related party (Refer note 33) 95 =
Total 3,902 857
Note:

Trade payables include retention money of INR 200 ( March 31, 2024: INR 243)

Undisputed Trade payable ageing schedules for the year ended March 31, zo25 and y

Outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2025 from the due date of payment

ear ended March 31, 2024:

Particulars MSME Others

Unbilled - 3,216
Not due 56 7
Less than 1 year 1 217
1-2 year 2 39
2- 9 vears 1 46
More than 3 years 48 LIt TRE 269
Total 108 7 Rust 3794

{
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Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lalkhs, unless otherwise stated)

Outstanding for the year ended As at March 31, 2024 from the due date of payment

Particulars MSME Others
Unbilled - 845
Not due 47 169
l.ess than 1 year 15 99
1-2 year 1 271
2- 9 years - 1
More than 3 years 1 9
Total 63 794
Note: There are no disputed trade payables to MSME and others
Note 20 - Other current financial liabilities
Particulars Anat AS AL
March 31, 2zoz;5 March 31, 2024
Refundable towards cancelled units 150 =
Other payable to related party (Refer note 33) - 23
Employee benefits payable ¥ 31
Security deposits refundable to customers 305 295
Total 455 349

Note 21 - Current provisions

Particulars Agel

March 31, zo25

As at
March 31, 2024

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (Refer note 37) - 5

Compensated absences (Refer note 37) - 16
Total - 19
Note 22 - Current tax liahilities
Paviiciilars As at As at

T March 31, 2o25 March 31, 2024
Provision for taxation (Net of advance tax including tax deducted at source of INR
183 (March 31, 2024: INR 3,001) ) 253 71
Total 253 71
Note 23 - Other current liabilities

: As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advances from customers (Contract Liabilities) (Refer note below) - 1,894
Statutory dues 12 19
Total 12 1,913

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the company has received consideration

(or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Comy,ajfi_’_ffdﬁ
7 A
£ P "

services Lo the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made.

4
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Rustomjee Realty Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 24 - Revenue from operations

Particulars

Year endéd
March 31, 2p25

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Revenue from Contract with Customers

Revenue [rom projects 11,769 2,423
Other operating income

Possession charges 1 3

Others - 61
Total 11,770 2,487

Note 25 - Other income

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Interest Income from financial assets at amortised cost

Deposits with banks 5 8
Others & *
Unwinding of discount on financial instruments 417 372
Miscellaneous income # 4
Total 422 384
Note 26 - Construction costs
Partisuliss Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Approval cost (FSI and Premium related expenses) 1,798 -
Electricily charges 55 -
Labour and material expenses 211 =
Cost of material consumed (Refer note 26(a)) 1,523 -
Site expenses 24 =
Total 3,011 -
Note 26(a) Cost of material consumed . Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Raw material at beginning of the year 127 127
Add :- Purchases 1,455 j
Less:- Raw material at end of the year 50 127
Total 1.523 -
Note 27 - Changes in inventories of completed saleable units
- Year ended Year ended
Particulars
g March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Completed saleable units 6.933 8,482
6,933 8.482
Inventories at the end of the year
Completed saleable units - 6,933
i . 6,933
Total P AP ) 6,933 1,549
N T | T




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, z025

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 28 - Employee benefits expense

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Salaries and bonus 85 114
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 37) 3 5
Gratuity (refer note 37) - 5
Staft welfare expenses 2 2
Total Q0 126

Note 29 - Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

D

Total

Note 30 - Finance costs

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities at amortised cost

- On debentures ®

- On borrowings from banks 32 540
Interest on statutory dues 24 ¥
Other borrowing costs 14 56
Total 70 605
Note 31 - Other expenses
Parealng Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Advertisement and publicity 1 68
Commission and brokerage 15 48
Legal and professional fees 199 106
Information technology expenses 23 33
Travel and conveyance 13 8
Payment to auditors [refer note 31(a)] 0 ¢]
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (Refer note 31(b)) 50 46
Qutsourced manpower cost 14 41
Credit impaired - Trade receivables 67 -
Miscellaneous expenses 52 e}
Total el A 368




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 31(a) - Details of payment to auditors

Particulars

Year enddd
March 31, 2925

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Details of payment to auditors
As auditors

Audit fees 9 §]
In other capacity

Re-imbursement of expenses i i
Total 9 9
Note 31(b) - Corporate social responsibility expenditure
Pistioulive Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a) Amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Act 50 46
b) Amount of expenditure incurred,
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset = =
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 60 46
Others - -
60 46

c) Excess/ (short) at the end of the year 10 #

d) Tetal of previous year for shortfall
¢) Reason for shortfall

The area for CSR activities are promoting education and medical assistance.




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 32 - Taxation

32(a)- Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

; Year|ended Year ended
Particulars Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year 380 36
Total current tax expense 380 36
Deferred tax
(Decrease)/ Increase in deferred tax assets 12 (10)
Total deferred tax expense/ (credits) 12 (10)
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 392 26
Income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income
e B Year|ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income tax on remeasurement of the net defined benefit obligation - (3)
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss & (3)
32(b)- Deferred tax assets (net)
The balanee comprises temporary differences attributable to:

4 Al at As at
Fardeuldrs March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Difference in carrying amount of property plant and equipment and Intangible assets as 7 (5)
per tax accounts and books

Disallowance under section 40(a)(i), (ia) of the Income Tax Act, 1061 ] 10
Provision for employee benefits under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 B 17
Impact of expenditure claimed for tax purposes in the current year but expenditure =, (3)
charged to the statement of profit and loss in subsequent years.

Deferred tax assets (net) i 19

Movement in deferred tax assets

Created/

; As at o Created/ As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 p::-{‘:gi]::tll)lt:;s (utilised) to OCI  March 31, 2024
Difference in carrying amount of property plant (5 = = (5)
and equipment and Intangible assets as per lax
accounts and books
Disallowance under section 40(a)(i), (ia) of the 10 ~ = 10
Income Tax Act, 1961
Provision for employee benefits under section 25 (8) - 17
43B of the Income Tax Act, 1061
Impact of expenditure claimed for tax purposes (18) 18 (3) (3)
in the current vear but expenditure charged to
the statement of profit and loss in subsequent
years.

Total 12 10 e (3) 19




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
Noltes to the tinancial statements as at and for the year ¢ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Asiad Created/

Particulars (utilised) to
Tarch 31, 202 Z
Taven S 4 profit and loss

Cre
{utilise

As at
Marich 31, 2025

Difference in carrying amount of property plant (5) 12 7
and ecquipment and Intangible assets as per tax
accounls and hooks
Disallowance under section go(a)(i), (ia) of the 10 (10) %
Income Tax Act, 1961
Provision for employee benefits under section 17 (17) o
438 of the Income Tax Act, 1961
Imipact of expenditure claimed for tax purposes (3) 9 =
in the current year bul expenditure charged to
the statement of profit and loss in subsequent
years.
Total 19 (12) 7l
32(c)- Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by statutory tax rg

: Year Year ended
Toviteulars March March 31, z024

Profit before tax for the year
Statutory tax rate applicable te Company

214
25.17%

Tax expense at applicable tax rate

Unwinding of discount on financial instrument - at amortized cost
Interest waiver

Others

54
(94)

ha
14

Income tax expense

26




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 33 - Related party transactions

I

a)

b)

c)

d)

(ii) Entity over which Holding Company exercises joint controls

(i)

Name of related parties and nature of relationship:

Where control exists
Holding company: Keystone Realtors Limited

Key management personnel

Mr. Boman Irani - Promoter and Director of holding company
Mr. Chandresh Mehta - Promoter and Director of holding company
Mr. Perey Chowdhry - Promoter and Director of holding company

Mr. Shovir Pervez Irani - Director
Mr. Rohinton Batliwalla - Director
Mr. Sajal Gupta - CFO of holding company

Non-executive director

Ms. Seema Mohapatra - Independent Director upto July 23, 2024

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

existed at the year end

Fellow subsidiaries
Crest Property Solutions Private Limited
Credence Property Developers Private Limited

Kapstone Constructions Private Limited

(iii) Entity in which companies Key Management Personnel exercise significant influence

11

a)

Sanguinily Realty Private Limited
Rustom Irani Foundation

Transactions with related parties

Transactions during the year

and closing balances

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Unsecured loans taken
Credence Praperty Developers Private Limited

Unsecured loans repaid
Credence Property Developers Private Limited
Keystone Realtors Limited

Unwinding of discount on financial intrument - at amortized

cost (refer note 25)
Credence Property Developers Private Limited

Unsecured loans given
Keystone Realtors Limited

Loans & advances repaid
Keystone Realtors Limited

Interest on non-convertible debentures
Kapstone Constructions Private Limited

Reimbursement of construction material
Keystone Realtors Limited

.t

800

417

2,735

(2,735)

fo0

Ho1

372



Rustomjee Realty Private Limited

Notes Lo the financial statements as at and for the yvear ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

a)

b)

c)

d)

Transactions during the year

Particulars

Year ende

March 31, 202

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Outsourced Manpower Cost
Crest Property Solutions Private Limited

Other expenses - Common cost
Keystone Realtors Limited

Legal and professional expenses - License Fee
Mr. Boman Irani

Corporate social responsibility expenditure
Rustom Irani Foundation

QOutstanding balances

40

99

31

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2¢

25

As at
March 31, 2024

Current borrowings (Unsecured debentures payable)
Kapstone Constructions Private Limited

Investment in Preference shares (refer note 3)
Credence Property Developers Private Limited

Trade payables
Keystone Realtors Limited
Crest Property Solutions Private Limited
Mr. Boman Irani

Trade receivables
Keystone Realtors Limited
Sanguinity Realty Private Limited

Loans Payable
Credence Property Developers Private Limited

Loans Receivable
Keystone Realtors Limited

Employee stock option outstanding
Keystone Realtors Limited

Directors sitting fees
Ms. Seema Mohapatra

Terms and conditions
All outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable/receivable in cash.

Unsecured debentures from related parties are repayable on demand and carry an interest of

0.01%)

Loan to and from related party are interest free and the purpose for which loan is granted (ft

not prejudicial to the company's interest.

10

23

1,217

208

5,089

800

11,217

23

fit

f0.,01% p.a (March 31, 2024




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 34 - Fair value measurement

Particulars Asag s at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Financial assets - measured at amortised cost
Long-term deposits with banks -deposits with original maturity of more than 12 menth 5 40
Trade receivables 8 678
Cash and cash equivalents f,628 187
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 260 861
Deposits with bank remaining maturity of less than 12 months 15 -
Current loans 11,217 11,217
Investiment in Preference Shares 5,506 5:089
Interest acerued on deposits with banks 4 30
Financial assets - measured at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in equity instruments 1 1
Investment in mutual funds 8,199 7,857
Total financial assets 31,843 25,960
Financial liabilities - Amortised cost
Current borrowings 208 3,072
Trade payables 3,002 857
Refundable toward cancelled units 150 -
Employee benefits payable : 31
Corpus fund payable to society 8,215 8,682
Other payable to related party - 2
Security deposits refundable to customers 305 295
Total finanecial liabilities 12,780 12,060

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the
measured at amortised cost and fair value through profit and loss and for which fair values
statements.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includ
instruments and traded bonds that have a quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the clos

financial instruments that are
are disclosed in the financial

bs instruments like listed equity
ng net assets value,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example: traded bonds, over-the

counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observab
as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrum

The fair values of non-current borrowings and deposits with banks are calculated based on cash fl
lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the in
including counterparty credit risk,

(ii) Valuation process

le market data and rely as little
are observable, the instrument

ent is included in level 3.

ows discounted using a current
clusion of unobservable inputs

The finance department of the Company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for

financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values.

(iii) Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost - Level 3

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets
Long-term deposits with banks - deposits
with original maturity of more than 12 44 49
Total financial assets 5 e L 40




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited

Notes to the finaneial statements as at and for the year ended
(All amounts in INR La kkhs, unless otherwise stated)

Wor financials assets and liabilities the carrying amounts arc equatl to
Jiabilitics that are measured at fair value is at the prevailing market rates.

March 31, 2025

(iii) Fair value of financial instruments meas ured through profit and loss

the fair value as Interesf

rate on financials assets and

Asjat
Particulars March 31, 2025
Level t Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Investment in Equity Instruments = = 1
Investment in Preference Shares (at amortised cost) - - 3,888
Tnvestment in Mutual Fund 8,199 - -
Total financial assets 8,199 - 3,889
Aslat
Particulars March 31, 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Investment in Equity Instruments - = 1
Investment in Preference Shares (at amortised cost) = 2 3471
Tnvestment in Mutual Fund 7,857 - -
7,857 ~ 3,472

The carrying amounts of Trade receivables, Cash and cash equivalents, Bank balances other
Current loans,
Security deposits, Current horrowings, Trade pay
fund payable to society, Other payable to related party, Deposits with bank remaini
deposits refundable to customers,Non-current borrowings,Long-term d

than 12 menths are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

Note 35 - Financial Risk Management
The Company’s activities expose it to
focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial m
performance.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of finan
Company is exposed to credit risk from trade receivables, loans, deposits with banks

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are generally unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers,

resulting from sale of inventories is managed by requiring customers to pay the dues before 1

substantially eliminating the Company’s credit risk in this respect. In case of cancellation of sale
company shall be entitled to sell and transfer the premises to another cust
equivalent to (a) 10
new customer, Historical experience of collecting receivables of the comp

the credit risk is perceived to be low.

any is supported by lo

Other financial assets

The Company has assessed for its other financial
balances other than cash and cash equivalents
periodically monitors the recoverability and credit risks of its financial assets. The Company ev
losses for
considers lifetime expected credit losses for the purpose of impairment provisioning,
The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at March 41, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is 4
financial assets as disclosed in notes 3 - 4 and 8- 12

7

11

Investment in Preference Shares, Interest accrued on deposits with banks, Other
ables. Refundable toward cancelled units, Em
ng maturity
eposits with banks -deposi

a variety of financial risks namely credit risk, liquidity risk
arkets and seek to minimize potential

cial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party fails to mes
and financial

omer, forfeit and a
9% (ten percent) of the Sale Consideration and (b) the actual loss to oceur on

assets namely Loans, Investments, interest rd
and other receivable as high quality, negligible credit risk. The Company

all the financial assets for which credit risk has not inereased. In case credit risk has inci

than cash and cash equivalents,
receivables from related party,
ployee benefits payable, Corpus
of less than 12 months, Security

ts with original maturity of more

and market risk. The Company’s
adverse effects on its financial

t its contractual obligations. The
institutions.

Credit risks related to receivables
ransfer of possession, therefore,
. agreement by the customer, the
bpropriate into itself an amount
the resale of the premises to the
v level of past default and hence

g

ceivable, security deposits, Bank

nluates 12 month expected credit
-eased significantly, the Company

231} g ¥

o

class of

\

he cc‘lrllr*ﬁli;lg._.-\'?é{] ue of each’
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Rustonijee Realty Private Limited

Notes to lhe financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(ii) Liguidity risk

Liguidity is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle ov meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price.

Conipany's objective is to, at all time maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its financial obli
liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and by having access to funding
committed credit lines. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by seni

Maturities of financial liabilities

rations. The Company manages
hrough an adequate amount of
or management,

The table summarises the maturity profile of company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Particulars Less than one One to four More t:]mn 4 Total
vear years yeays
As at March 31, 2025
Borrowing (including interest) 208 - = 208
Trade payables 3,002 2 = 3,902
Corpus fund payahle to society = 8,215 = 8,215
Refundable towards cancelled units 150 = = 150
Security deposits refundable to customers 305 y = 305
4,565 8.215 - 12,780
Particulars Less than one One to four More than 4 Total
year years veais
As at March 31, 2024
Borrowing (including interest) 3,133 = = 3,133
Trade payables 857 = - 857
Employee benefits payable 31 2 == 31
Corpus fund payable to society - 8,682 ) 8,682
Other payable to related party 2 % = 2
Security deposits refundable to customers 295 5 - 205
4,339 8,682 B 13,021

(iii) Market risk

Market risk is the rigk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuat
prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instr

include borrowings.

(a) Foreign currency risk

e because of changes in market
uments affected by market risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign

exchange rates. The Company is not materially exposed to any foreign exchange risk during the vep

(b) Interest risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to risk of changes in market rate is limited

convertible debentures) which bear floating interest rate.

The company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject t
Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of chs

The company manages the interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable ra
the company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

(1) Interest rate exposure

hrting periods.

fluctuate because of changes in
o barrowings (excluding non-

n interest rate risk as defined in
inge in market interest rates.

te borrowings. The exposure of

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, zo24

Variable rate borrowings

- 2,004

Total borrowings

e 2,064




Rustomjee Realty Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the ye
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

ar ended March 31, 2025

(2) Sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher / lower interest ¢xpense as a result of cha
decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management pe
assessment of the reasonahly possible change in the interest 1
before tax will be impacted by a change in interest rate as follows:

nges in interest vat

rsonnel
-ates, With all other variables held

:. A 100 basis point increase or
and represcnts management's
constant, the Company’s profit

e

Increase | (decrease) in profit before
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Inerease in interest rate by 100 basis points (100 bps) i (21)
- 21

Decrease in interest rate by 100 basis points (100 bps)

Note 36 - Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's ca pital management, capital includes issued equity capit
attributable to the equity holders and borrowings.

The Company aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeg
returns for it's shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is based on ma
of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs.

The Company monitors the capital structure on t
the Company.

The Company considers the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manages the capital
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
The Company’s aim is to translate profitable growth to superi
Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong c
craditors and market confidence and to sustain future development
steps in order to mainfain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure.

The table below summarises the capital, nct debt and net debt to equity ratio of the Contpany.

uard its ability to continue as

nagement’s judg

le hasis of debt to equity ratio and maturity profi

or cash generation through eff
apital structure with a focus on total eq
and growth of its business. Th

4l and all other equity reserves

) going concern and to optimise
ment of the appropriate balance

le of the overall debt portfolio of
structure in light of changes in
icient capital management. The

ity so as to mainfain investor,
e Company will take appropriate

Particulars o b |
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Equity share capital 118 118
Other equity 20,480 19,843
Total equity 20,604 19,901
Borrowings {including interest acerued) 208 3,072
Total Debt 208 3,072
Debt to equity ratio 0.01 0.15

The Company was in compliance with all of its debt covenants for borrowings as at each of the dat

Note 37 - Employee henefit obligations

es mentioned above.

As

Particulars March ¢

31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

at

Non current

Gratuity - )
Current

Compensated Absences - 16
Gratuity = 3
Total b A = 39
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Notes to the inancial statements as at and for the year ended March 31. 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(i) Leave Obligations

‘The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for casual, sick and earned leave and are based o

The amount of the provision of INR Nil (March 31, 2024 - INR 16) is presented as current, since

unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations. However, based on past exp

expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued leave or require payment within the
amounts reflect leave that is not expected to be taken or paid within the next 12 months.

n Actuarial valuation.

the Company does not have an
erience, the Company does not
1ext 12 months. The following

As gt
March 31

Particulars

As at

,2025 March 31, 2024

Current leave obligations not expected to be settled within next 12 months

1X

(ii) Defined contribution plans

The Company has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in

of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provid
government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has
constructive obligation. During the year, the Company has recognised INR 3 (March 31, 2024: INR
loss or construction work-in-progress.

(iii) Post Employment Obligations
(a) Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Ac
continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable g
employees' last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multig

India for employees at the rate
ent fund administered by the
o further contractual nor any
5 in the statement of profit and

t, 1972. Employees who are in
n retirement/termination is the
lied for the number of years of

service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to recognised fufds in India. The Company does

not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period
expected gratuity payments.

Balance Sheet Amounts - Gratuity
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligati

of time based on estimations of

on over the year ave as follows:

Barticlhen Preseqt v:?luc of Fair value of plan e LA
obligation asseats
As at April 01, 2023 38 25 13
Current service cost 4 - 4
Interest expense/(income) 9 2 1
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 7 2 5
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in interest = ¢ (*)
expense/(income)
(Gain )/loss from change in demographic assumptions () - *)
(Gain )/loss from change in financial assumptions ¥ - i@
Experience (gains)/losses (11) : (11)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive incom (11) ) (11)
Employer contributions - 3 (3)
Liability Transferred Out/ Divestments (12) (14) 2
Benefit payments (2) (3) -
As at March 31, 2024 19 i3 6
Piistisilune PI‘ESET‘lt va.]ue of Fair value of plan Nt ampiing
obligation assets
As at April 01, 2024 19 6
Liability Transferred Out/ Divestments (19) (6)

As at March 31, 2025
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The net linbility disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans is as below:

Particulars As at As at
March 34, 2025  March 31, 2024
Present value of funded obligations - (19)
Fair value of plan assets - 14
Deficit of funded plan - (6)
Deficit of gratuity plan £l (6)
Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:
" As al As at
Partiveas March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate Not applicable 7.17%
Employee turnover Not applicable 17.00%
Salary growth rate® Not applicable 10.00%
Mortality rate Not applicable Indian Assured Lives Mortality
2012-14 (Urban)
*Taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions by 1% is as below:
Impact on defined benefit gbligation
4 Increase in assumptions Decrease in assumptions
Particulars
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Discount rate - (1) - 1
Salary growth rate - 1 — (0)
Employee turnover (0) i (0)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other ass
this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When caleulat
benefit ohligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defin

umptions constant. In practice,
ng the sensitivity of the defined
ed benefit obligation calculated

with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit

liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change cor

The major categories of plans assets are as follows:

The plan asset for the funded gratuity plan is administered by Life Insurance Corporation of Ind
pattern stipulated for Pension and Group Schemes fund by Insurance Regulatory and Development
of plan assets are invested in insurer managed fund. Quoted price of the same is not available in act

Risk Exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significan

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the government securities rate w
the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark
depending on the duration of asset.

Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to ths
such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will inerease the plan's liab

npared to the previous year.

ia ('LIC" as per the investment
Authority regulations i.e. 100%
ive market.

t of which are detailed below :

ill increase the present value of
to market value of the assets

> future salaries of members. As
lity.

Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined

by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return
it will ereate a plan deficit, Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of invest
and other debt instruments.

Asset liahility matching risk (ALM risk): The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash
in lines of rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk.

@ A

on plan asset is below this rate,
nents in government securities,

flow. Sifice the FF?.:{E is invested
N\

/
/
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Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retjrement age only, plan does not
have any longevity risk.
Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the ingurance Company and a default
will wipe out all the assets, Although probability of this is very less as insurance companies have to follow regulatory guidelines.

Defined benefit liability and employer contributions
Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for next 12 months is INR o (March 31, 2p24: INR 3)

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 10 years. The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted
gratuity is as follows:

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting Mm-cﬁs:'?,'; ::2025 Marc: ;?,tzozc;

1 year 3 3
2 to § years i 10
6 to 10 years - 7
More than 10 years - 6

(iv) Group Employee option plan
The establishment of the Rustomjee Employee Stock Option Plan 2022 was approved by the Holding company shareholders on
May 11, 2022. Under the plan, participants are granted options which vest at 25% each year over the period of four years of service
from the grant date. Participation in the plan is at the Holding company board’s discretion and no individual has a contractual
right to participate in the plan or to receive any guaranteed benefits.
Once vested, the options remain exercisable for a period of four years. When exercisable, each option is convertible into one equity
share.

Set out below is a summary of options granted under the plan:

As at March 31, 2025 Aslat March 31, 2024
Particulars Average Number of | Average exercise Number of
exercise price options price per share oplions
per share option option (INR in
(INR in absolute)
absolule)

Opening balance 480 21,400 480 40,300
Granted during the year = - 480 2,500
Exercised during the year - - - -
Forfeited during the year - ~ - -
Transfer out (480) (21.400) 480 (21,400)
Closing balance - - 480 21,400

Stock options exercisable as at March 31, 2024 is 10,075 with Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding
at end of period March 31, 2024 is 4.84.
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of period March 31, 2024 is 4.96.
Fair value of options granted
The fair value at grant date is independently determined using the Black-Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise
price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, théexpected
dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the option. 2N N\

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended March 31, 2024 includes: it jj
Grant -1 '

a) Vested options are exercisable for a period of four years after vesting,
b) exercise price: INR 480 (in absolute)

¢) grant date: August 01, 2022

d) share price at grant date: INR 499.34 (in absolute)

e) expected price volatility of the company’s shares: 43%

) Dividend yield; 0%

g) risk-free interest rate: 6.95% to 7.27%

S
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31, 2025

Grant -2

a) Vested options are exercisable for a period of three years after vesting.
1) excreise price: INR 480 (in absolute)

¢) grant date: October 18, 2023

d) share price at grant date: INR 562.95 (in absolute)

¢) expected price volatility of the company’s shares: 43%

) Dividend yield: 0%

g) risk-free interest rate: 7.45% to 7.49%

The expected price volatility
expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information.

Note 38 - Earnings per share

i based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of;

the options), adjusted for any

Shisttoilns Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Profit for the year 643 138
Weighted average number of equity shares 11,80,860 11,80,860
Share of profit attributable to equity shares 643 188
Nominal value per equity share (INR) 10 10
Earnings per equity shares (basic and diluted) (INR) 54 16

Note 39 - Dues to micro and small enterprises
The Company has cert

(MSMED Act). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

ain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Ent

srprise Development Act, 2006

As at and for the  As at and for the
Particulars yvear ended year ended
Mazrch 31, zo25  March 31, 2024

a) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining
unpaid as at year end

b) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and rem
as at year end

¢) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the
appointed day during the year

d) Interest paid, other than under section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered
under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

¢) Interest paid, under section 16 of MGMED Act, to suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

aining unpaid

f) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for
payments already made
g) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years

108 63

Note 40 - Segment Reporting
The Board of directqrs (BOD) is the Company’s chief operating decision-maker. Managemern
segments based on the information reviewed by the BOD for the purposes of allocating resources ¢
Presently, the Company is engaged in only one segment viz 'Real estate and allied activities' an
segment as per Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments'.

Entity wide disclosure
(a) Information about product and services - The Company operates is a single category viz Real ¢
(b) Information in respect of geographical area - The Company has operations within India.
(¢) Information about major customer - Non of the customer contribute to more than 10% of total

Non-current assets excluding financial assets and deferred tax asset amounting to INR 923 (Mar|
entirely in India.

t has determined the operating
ind assessing performance.
d there is no separate reportable

state and allied activities.

revenue of the Company.

th 31, 2024: INE;,E?i:-'?,_‘j aré-’-iqc_atecl
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Note 41 - Liabilities from financing activilies

3 i’ ! y As at As at
Particulars Mavch 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Borrowings (including interest acerued) 208 3,072
Net Debt 208 3,072
. . iy | As at As at

Borrowings (including interest accrued) March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Opening 3,072 6,204
Borrowings taken * 800
Borrowings repaid (2,854) (3,965)
Interest expense 70 605
Finance costs paid (80) (572)
Closing 208 3,072
Note 42 - Contingent liabilities

: . As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt
Service tax matters 9,789 9,789
GST matter 2,009 1,736

Note 1) It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any, in r¢

resolution of the respective proceedings.

Note 2) The Company has evaluated the impact of the Supreme Court (SC) judgement dateq
"Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others Vs The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (II) West
(Circular No. C-1/1(33)2019/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated March 20, 2019 issued by
Organisation in relation to non-exclusion of certain allowances from the definition of "basic wage
the purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees' Provident Fu
Act, 1952. In the assessment of the management which is supported by legal advice, the Comy]
judgement does not have material impact on the Company, The Company does not expect any rei
contingent liabilities.

Note 3) The service tax and GST matters are mainly relating to input tax credit and applicability of

Note 43 - Assets pledged as security

spect of above matters pending

1 February 28, 2019 in case of
Bengal" and the related circular

the Employees’ Provident Fund

s" of the relevant employees for
nds & Miscellaneous Provisions

pany believes that the aforesaid
mbursements in respect of above

tax for certain services.

Description Asgt A8 at

Bl : March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Trade receivables - 665
Inventories - 7,060
Total - 7725
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 45 - Disclosure in respect of, Revenue from contracts with customers
Note 45.1 - Unsatisfied performance obligation

The following table shows how

much of the revenue recognised in the current repotting period reld

\tes to carried-forward contract

liabilities:
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars ;
March 34, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liabilities - -
balance at the beginning of the year
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price:
; Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Contract price 11,770 2,487
Less: Discount 3 #
Revenue from operations 11,770 2,487

Note 45.2 - Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

Year
Ti
At a po

Year ended March 31, 2025
Timing of recognisation
At a point in time Overtime

Particulars

ended March 31, 2024
ning of recognisation
nt in time Overtime

1

i

Revenue from operation 11,770

2,487

Note 46 - Additional Regulatory Information

i) Details of Benami property Held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pendin
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

ii) Borrowings secured against current assets
The Company had borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets, also refer
requirements of filing quarterly returns or st

iii) Willful Defaulter
The Company has never been declared
authority.

as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution o

iv) Relationship with struck off companies
The Company has no transactions with the ¢

v) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers preseribed under the Companies Act, 2013

vi) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has not entered into any schenie of arrangement which has an accounting impac
vear.

g against the Company for holding benami pr

atements with banks as per the terms of relevant agre

ampanies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Cq

bperty under the Benami

note 43. However, there were no

enents.

- government or any government

ympanies Act, 19506.

revious financial

t on current or p
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vii) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities

(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a, directly or indivectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoeyer by or on

behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, sceurity or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons o entities identified in any manner whatsoeyer by or on

behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

viii) Undisclosed income

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year inl the tax assessments under the

Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

ix) Details of erypto currency or virtual currency

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current pr previous year.

x) Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.

xi) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the

gtatutory period.

xii) Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions

The borrowings obtained by the company from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such

loans were taken.

xiii) Title deed of immovable properties
The Company does not own any immovable properties.

Note 47 -

As per the requirements of rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 the Company uses accounting software for
maintaining its books of account that have a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction creating an edit log of
each change made in the books of account along with the date when such changes were made within such accounting software.
This feature of recording audit trail has operated throughout the year except for certain transactions, changes made through
specific access and for direct database changes and no audit trail features were tampered during the year and have been preserved

by the company as per the statutory requirement for record retention.

Note 48 -
* Amount is below the rounding off norm adapted by the Company
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